
BIGGER'S-MASON'S-WRIGHTS FERRY

An 1811 act of the S. C. legislature establishing "certain Roads, Bridges and Ferries"
included the following:

That the ferry on the Catawba river, in York district, commonly called Bigger's
ferry, and lately, by law, vested in Dr. John Allison, be, and the same is hereby, re
established; and vested in James Mason, his heirs and assigns, for the term of
fourteen years. And that the following rates of ferriage, and no more, be received at
the same, to wit: — for every foot passenger, four cents; for every led horse, four
cents; for every rider and horse, six and a quarter cents; for every carriage with two
wheels, horse and driver, twenty-five cents; for every four wheeled carriage, driver
and horses, seventy-five cents; for every hogshead of tobacco, horse and driver,
twenty-five cents; for every head of black cattle, sheep, goats or hogs, two cents.
In 1827, following the death of Daniel Mason, the ferry was vested in his widow,

Nancy Mason. Nancy Mason was allowed to keep it for 7 years at the same terms except

that "she be allowed the sum of 12 ̂ cents for every man and horse.
In 1841 the above ferry was rechartered. James Mason and his heirs sold their right

to operate to James L. Wright and William Wright for 7 years. The road that led to and from
the ferry was now termed the "great road leading from Yorkville, South Carolina, to
Charlotte, North Carolina." In this century the "great road" received a number — Hwy. 49, a
part of the national road network.

Sometime around the turn of the 20th century, perhaps as a result of the Great
Flood of 1904, ferry service across the Catawba River was dropped at the site of Wright's
Ferry. People from the town of York and northern York County found that, if they wanted to
go to Charlotte, N. C., they had to go through Gastonia, N. C., an addition of about thirty-
five miles. After much debate and political maneuvering, Mecklenburg County, N. C. and
York County, S. C. agreed to build a bridge over the site of the old Wright's ferry route. W.
M. Boyd, a Mecklenburg citizen, the access land on both sides of the river and agreed to
sell.

Mecklenburg County paid for two-thirds of the cost of construction of the projected
$120,000 needed to build the bridge which would have concrete supports and a plank
flooring covered with asphalt. Mecklenburg also hard-surfaced the road from its side of the
bridge into Charlotte. York County, which customarily built all of its roads and bridges with
convict labor, ran into all sorts of problems from bad weather to quicksand and had only
three miles of paved road by the date of the bridge opening on August 17,1923.

The governors of both Carolines and numerous county officials were present that
hot day in August, along with a crowd estimated at over 10,000. There were community
bands and scout bands. Local farmers contributed free barbecue. Cold drink stands and

picnic tables were spotted over the landscape. There was a forty-acre parking lot but It was
not large enough for all the cars which lined the roadsides for two miles. The Rathe and
International motion picture companies filmed the celebration for distribution through the
nation.

Following the speeches by the two governors, a highlight of the celebration was the
appearance of stunt pilots who flew under the bridge to the awe of the crowd. First, two
young men from Charlotte, P. R. Redfem and B. F. Withers, Jr. swooped a Curtis plane
under the bridge. Later, Capt. Elliott White Springs of Fort Mill, a World War I flying ace and
local hero, made a perfect flight under Buster Boyd bridge.

The following spring York County asphalted the road from York to the North Carolina
line.

By Louise Pettus, "Nearby History" coiumn in York Observer, May 30,1993.








